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To the Members of Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
{(‘the Company’), which comptise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statéments give the information required by the Compantes Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act,
of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and its profit (financial
performance including other comprehensive income}, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standatds on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our resporisibilities under those standards ate further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilites
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethi¢s issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statementé and Auditor’s Report thezeon

4. The Company’s Board of Ditectors is responsible for the other infofmation. Other informnation does not
include the financial statements and onr audito ;T
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QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to tead the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or out knovledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained ptior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to teport that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other information is obtained at the
date of this auditot’s report.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Chatged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affaits
{financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the acconnting principles generally accepted
iu-Indi'a,.'including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
naintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting poficies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementatlon and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
matetial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

6. In prepﬂﬂng the financial statements, management is responsible for assessmg the Company’s abﬁity 10
continue as a going concérn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

7. Those Board of Dizectors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

8. .Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial staternents as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
out opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always détect a material misstatement when it exists.
Missratements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materal if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influenice the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we: exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o  Identify and assess the risks of matefial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and petform audit procedures responsive to those tisks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropsate to provide a basis for cur opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Chartered Accountarts
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10.

11.

12.

13,

14.

Charterod Accountants

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design andit procedures
that are approptiate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act; we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the . reasonableness of accounting
estimates.and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence .obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significatit doubt on the Company’s ability to continue-as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are requited to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosutes in the financial statements ot if such disclosutes are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concetn.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit-and significant andit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we 1dentify during our andit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independénce, and where applicable, related
safeguards. '

Other Matter

The Company had prepared separate sets of statutory financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2018 and 31 March 2017 in accordance with Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014 {as amended) on which we issued auditor’s

repotts to the shareholders of the Company dated 28 August 2018 and 29 September 2017 respectively.

These financial statements.have been adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by
the Company on transition to Ind AS, which have also.been audited by us. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to its
directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Otder’} issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on
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15. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as-required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

9

Q

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of cur audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from ocur examination of those books;

the financial statements dealt with by this report ate in agreement with the bocks of account;

In our.opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind-AS specified under section 133
of the Act; '

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is 'disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from being appointed
-as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

we have also andited the internal financial controls over financial teporting (IFCoFR) of the Company
as on 31 Match 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
vear ended on that date and our report dated 23 May 2019 as per Annexure B'expressed an unmodified
opinion; and

with respect.to the othet matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rmle 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

1 The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position as
at 31 March 2019;

i, 'The Company.did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which thete
‘were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2019,

il..  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2019; and

iv.  the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes-were
applicable for the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016, which are not relevant
to these financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Partner
Membership Noi: 095256

Place: New Delhi

Firm’s Registration No.: 004076N /N500013

Date: 23 May 2019

Chartered Atcountants
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Travel News
Services (India) Private Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and
the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we report that;

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) All fixed assets (in the nature of property, plant and equipment) have not been physically
verified by the management during the year, however, there is a regular program of
vérification under which fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a pertod of three
years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢} The Company does not hold any immovable property (in the natare of ‘fixed assets’).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3() (¢} of the Otder are not applicable.

1) In our opinion, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at
reasonable intervals during the year and no material discrepancies between physical
inventory and book records were noticed on physical verification.

(iffy ~ The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liabilicy Partnerships (LLPs) or other patrties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b) and. 3(iii)(c)
of the Order are not applicable.

{iv) In our opinion, the Company bas not entered into any transactions covered under Section 185 and
186 of the Act in respect of security. Further, the Company has complied with the provisions of
Section 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investment and guarantees given,

(v) In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of
Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi)  The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/services. Accordingly, the,
provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

(vif)(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited to the:
appropriate authorities, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. Further, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b} There are no dues in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise and value added tax that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute.

(vi)  The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any bank dufing the
year. Further, the Company has no loans or borrowings payable to a financial institution ot

Charterad Accountants




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Travel News
Services (India) Private Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(@)

(xiv)

In our opinion, the Company has applied moneys raised by way of the term loans for the purposes
for which these were raised. The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer and
further public offer (inchiding debt instruments).

No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the period covered by our andit.

Managerial remuneration has been paid by the Company in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section. 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the Act.

In out opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xif) of
the Order are not applicable.

In-our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188

of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as requireéd by the applicable Ind AS.

During the year, the Company has made private placement of shares. In respect of the same, in
our opinion, the Company has complied with the requirement of Section 42 of the Act and the
Rules framed thereunder. Further, in our opinion, the amounts so raised have been used for the
purposes for which the funds were raised. During the year, the Company did not make preferential
allotment/ ptivate placement of fully/pattly convertible debentures,

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors-or
petsons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A. of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Partner
Membership Noi: 095256

Place: New Delhi
Date: 23 May 2019

Chuorlered Accountants
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Chartored Accountants

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Travel News
Services (India) Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Independent Auditor’s Repott on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Travel News Services (India) Private
Limited (‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019, we have audited the internal
finiancial controls over financial reporting (TFCoFR’) of the Company as at that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial repoiting critetia established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
TEColR issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI” These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the ordetly and efficient conduct of the Company’s busihess,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
tirnely prepatation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We
conducted out audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chattered
Accountants of India (TCAT’) and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note on Aundit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the ICAT. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and petform the aundit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and:if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR
and their’ operatmg effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an understanding of
IFCoFR, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the desigh and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedutes selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, inchuding the assessment of the risks of matetial misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for

out audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's IFCoFR is 2 process designed to provide reasonable assutance regarding the teliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCoFR. include those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
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Chartered Avcountants

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Travel News
Services (India) Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accorddnce with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management overtide of controls, material misstatements due to error or frand may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR. to future periods are subject to the tisk
that the IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedutes may deteriorate. '

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls .over
financial reporting and such controls were operating. effectively as. at 31 March 2019, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company constdering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Waller Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Regy\lo.: 001076N/N500013
N

it Kumatr
Partner
Membership No.: 095256

Place: New Delhi
Date: 23 May 2019




Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

AL amounts i 2 lacs, unless stated otherwase)

Bk As at As at A.rj at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Non-current asscts
Praperty, plant and eguapiment ) 621.70 693.73 00771
Capital work n progress 3, 712 15.04
Intangibile aaser e 1ol 1531 1209
Catancnl assers
Investienis 4 2i235 Ly
T L3 102357 O8O
ther bl assets 3h} 300040 163,01 207,21
Peterid s et 4 47T 1.
NOCuoCnt L dssel s et 7 23017 11402 23706
LR TR T R IO R T TN 1Y & 411.37 TTRBL 837.82
3,649.42 3,075.01 2,847.13
Curtent assets
Fraeurones 9 1273.20 118300 L512.28
Unnane al asseis
Teale vecenables n Ya6 32 330047 620,78
Cashoand Gy equialents " 233,52 0617 377 30
©obier bank balances 12 345 34 133.79
Loans 137a; 3783 4522
U tther Boanoat issets 130 387 ! 1247
Iher curren et i 8619 32 v 22032
3,045.58 2,029.35 2,707.34
6,6095.00 5,004.36_ 555447
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Pt share apitai L I E T2 [NRRN
s hur ot 16 | 49450 AT AR [t 2%
L908.98 525.13) 349.19
Liabihues
Nun-current liabilities
Frttancnd babrhige -
Borrawmes 1 1 ZASENE 0.7
other hoan il haladin 1K Dtns 12445
Shber s areot alabines 14 14] 321w
Prory aname M 6339 (TP | k4.2
1,620.73 2419.50 25214
Crarent labihoes
Pl hanthoes
Buanow g k¥ .91
Trade payaliles i
Lol costdduy due o naero ad small LTRSS M2 By 42
Fonal outstanding due o credutors other than micro and sma)) S e 1302409 TN
cnivpre s
thes tusan il Tabnlis oF 3213 130,42
i v curreni bl - N a2 121.84 i
T s I 1.16 87 0.8
3,165.29 297799 275315
— 0,095.00 5,104.36 5,559.47

e aceompan ing notes form an ntegral part of 1t

nanceal statements,

dhe e i Balance Shoet eeferrod o our repore of even dare

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
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Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts i & lavs, unless stated otheewsse)

For the year ended

For the year ended

e 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

REVENUE

Revenue from operations 26 15,835.63 12,479.14

Orther income a7 248.06 13230
Total Revenues 16,083.69 12,631.44
EXPENSES

Purchase of stock-m-teade 28 $,101.82 6,261.98

Changes ininventones of stock-m-trade 29 (87 63) 126.73

Faployee benefits expense i 1.207.36 938.80

Orther expenses 31 0,5380.31 3,366.84
Total expenses 15,801.84 12,694.35
Earnings/(loss) before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) 281.85 (62.91)

Iinance costs 32 H1.77 333.89

Deprecianon and amortizanon expense 33 291.56 280.22
Laoss before tax (421.48) (677.02)
Tax expense 34

Current fax

Deferred tx (481.01;
Total tax expense (481.01) -
Profit/ (loss) for the year 59.53 (677.02)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement gun on post employment benefit obligatons 542 +.70

Income ax cffect on above 1.54)
Total other comprehensive income 4.38 4.70
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year 63.91 (672.32)
Earnings / (loss) per share (in ) 35

Basic and Diluted 144 (16.34)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

s 1= the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to 0 our seport of even date.

l'or Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Charctered Accounmants
Farm's Regstration No. 001076N /N3DO0T3

S

it Kumar
Partner

Membership No 193256

Place: New Delln i
Date : 23 May 211y / f

\
For and on behalf of the board of dseeetfirs of
Travel News Services (India) Private

fr?

Suni Mantri
Dhrector
1IN No. 02082403

\\r‘\

Mukul Jain
Chaef Fiancal Officer

Rajan otra Sushil
Direetor

DIN No. (12919149

g‘“’ﬂﬂr/

Ajit Singh Chhiller
Company Secretary

Membership Ne. 35436



Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2019

{Allamounts i 2 lacs, unless stated otherwise)

Amount
A. Equity share capital
Balance as on 1 Aprl 2017 414.42
Changes m equity share capital duning the year =
Balance as on 31 March 2018 414.42
Changes m equary shase capital ducng the year -
Balance as on 31 March 2014 414.42
B. Other equity
Particulars Deemed equity Securities premium slanee o Hieiatemensot Total
profit and loss
Balunce as on 1 April 2017 - 2,465.39 (2,530.62) (65.23)
Lowss for the year # - (672.32) (672.32)
Balance as on 31 March 2018 - 2,465.39 (3,202.94) (737.55)
Profit for the vear 6391 63.91
Ligquiny component of fully cumulative non 2,168.20 - - 2,168.20
comvertible redeemable peeference shares
Balance as on 31 March 2019 2,168.20 2,465.39 (3,139.03) 1,494.56
The accumpanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
This as the Stawement of Changes m Fquity referred to m our repoct of even date,
:ﬂ\.
e Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the board of directo
€ hartered Accountants Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
Farm s Regasteaton Noo. 01076 N300013 "| L
Aj by
alit Kumar 1 Suni Mantri Rajan M3dhotra Sushil
Iariner Ihrector Director
Membershap No. (193250 \ DIIN No. 02082403 DDIN No. 0291849
/| \
- %//"
Place: New Dl B
Date : 25 My 2019 Mukul Jain Ajit Singh Chhiller
S Chief Frnancial Officer Company Sceretary
4 Membership No. 33430
f
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\
\
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Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019

CAlLamounts i 2 Lics, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before income tax (H21.48) (677.02)
Adjustments for

Deprecation and amortisanion expense 291.56 280:23
Finance costs 411.77 333.89
Gam o sale/disposal of property, plant and equipment (1.38)

Property, plant and cquipment wenten off 3.82 22.86
Bad debis +22 -
Imparrement for loss allowances  debts and advances 9213 G7.00
Interest income (136.33) (102.53)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations before working capital changes 161.29 (75.58)
Working capital adjustments

Maovement m myentones : 87.63) 126.75
Movement n teade recenvables and loans (73859 +1.93
NMovement i other fimancal asscts 117.68) {0.8-)
Movement in ather assets (182,00 (111.67)
Movement in trade payvables and other finanel habilities 31110 483.92
Mot ement in ather habilities 5156 (20.96)
Mo viment m pros saons 23.46 6.77
Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (501.71) 374.30
fncome tases pad (net) (110.35) {93.92)
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities (A) (612.26) 278.38
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and L'quipmrnl u4.70 {(305.48)
{Investment g/ proceeds from maggin money deposits (net) T3 170.48
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 426

Interest meome 2.54 Fa2z
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (15.84) (93.78)

Cash flows from financing activitics

depayment of long-term borrowings (2,434.31) (19090
Proceeds from issuc of cumulative non-convertible redeemable preference shares 3,400,100 .
Interest pand (199.94) (274.93)
Net cash generated frum/ (used in) financing activities (C) : 765.55 (465.83)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 137.45 281.2%
Cash and cash equavalents ac the begmnmg of the sear DI

Cash uand cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 11) 233.52

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement

For the year ended 31

3., 1culare
Particulars March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following

Cash and eash equivalents (refer note 11) 253.52

926.07

Balance us per stutement of cash flows (as per above) 233.52

96.07

(1 speace Dk been intestionadly felt blanie)
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

Corporate information

Travel News Services (India) Private Limited. (“the Company”) was incorporated on 29 June 2009. The Company retails
books, confectionery, food, beverages and accessories etc. and is prmarily engaged in the business of operating retail
shops at vanous places in India. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Future Retail Limited (w.e.f 11 May 2018)
and running 1ts outlet under the brand name of WH Smith. On 11 May 2018, Future Retail Limited had acquired 100%
shareholding of the Company from ADD Advisors Private Limited and other shareholders. Hence the Company has
become deemed public company from the transaction date.

Application of Indian Accounting Standards

All the Ind AS issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the financial statements are authorized (Note 51) have been considered while
preparing these financial statements,

Standards issued but not effective

In March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 {(Amendment Rules) via notification dated 30 March 2019, notifying amendments to various
Ind AS (not applicable to the Company). These amendments are in accordance with the recent amendments made by
Intemational Accounting Standards Board (LASB) along with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
Interpretations Committee to IRFS as a part of annual improvement process. Also, along with these amendments,
Amendment Rules inserted a new lease standard Ind AS 116, Leases, (Ind AS 116). These amendments are applicable
from 01 April 2019 onwards.

Ind AS 116: Ind AS 116 requires lessees to recognize a “night to asset” and “a lease liability” for almost all of the leasing
arrangements. Optional exemption is available in respect of short term leases and low value leases.

The application of the same will withdraw currently applicable lease standard. The Company is currently assessing the
potential impacts of the newly notified standard. The same is applicable from reporting periods beginning on or after
1 April 2019.

Amendments to Ind AS 12, Income taxes - Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income tax treatments

On 30 March 2019, Minsstry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments which 1s to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there 1s uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According
to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment
that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most
likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates.

Full retrospective approach - Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting
period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,
without using hindsight; and

Retrospectively with cumulative effect of mitially applying Appendix C recognised by adjusting equity on mitial
application, without adjusting comparatives.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after 1 Aprl 2019. The
Company will adopt the standard on 1 Apnl 2019.
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The Company is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 — Income taxes

On 30.03.2019, MCA 1ssued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, “Income Taxes’, in connection with accounting
for dividend distribution taxes. The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of
dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised
those past transactions or events.

Amendment to Ind AS 19 — Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement

On 30.03.2019, Minmistry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS l‘)', ‘Employee Benefits’, in connection
with accounting for plan amendments, curtallments and settlements requiring an entity to use updated assumptions to
determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or

settlement; and to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction
in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Other Updates

T'he Company is in the process of evaluation of the possible impact of other amendments to the other existing standards
amended by Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) amendment rules, 2019.

Significant accounting policies

Basis for preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS")
as pet the Compantes (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act 2013 of

Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

I'he financial statements up to and for the year ended 31 March 2018 were prepared in accordance with the Companies
{\ccounts) Rules 2014 (‘lndian GAAP’), notfied under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 are the first to have been prepared in accordance with Ind
AAS, pursuant to acquisition of the Company by Future Retail Limited (being a listed entity).

The transition to Ind AS was carried out retrospectively as on the transition date of 1 April 2017. The financal statements
contain an opening balance sheet as on 1 April 2017, comparative information for 31 March 2018 presented under Ind

AS and reconciliation for key changes for amounts reported under Tndian GAAP and Ind AS is provided in Note 48.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financtal assets and habilities
which have been measured at fair value or net realizable value as applicable.

The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also 1ts funcuonal currency and all
amounts disclosed i the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lacs as per the requirement

uf Schedule 111 to the Act, unless otherwise stated.
-
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Newly effective standard adopted by the Company (recent accounting pronouncement)

The newly effective Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” requires to recognize revenue when customer
has transferred has transferred control of goods or service rather than transfer of risks and rewards. Refer note 26 for
further details.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is
treated as current when it 1s:
1. Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
ii. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
ii.  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
tv.  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least rwelve months
after the reporting petiod.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

2\ liability 1s current when:
L Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
1. lris held primarily for the purpose of trading
. It 1s due to be sertled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
w.  There s no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

\ll other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deterred tax assets or liabilities and other tax assets are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and its realisation in cash and cash
equvalents. The Company has identfied twelve months as its operating cycle.

Revenue recognition

The Company has applied Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the cumulative effect method
and therefore the comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under previously applied
standard.

Revenue 1s measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected
on behalf of third partes, if any. The Company recognizes revenue when it transfers control over a product or service
to 4 customer.

The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since 1t 1s the primary obligor in all
the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and 1s also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

To determine whether to recognize revenue, the Company follows a 5-step process:

ldentifying the contract with a customer

ldentifying the performance obligations

Determimng the transaction price

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligauons

nos W

Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfi
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Identifying the performance obligations

Under Ind AS 115, the Company evaluate the separability of the promised goods or services based on whether they are
‘distinet’. A promised good or service is ‘distinct’ if both:

* the customer benefits from the item either on its own or together with other readily available resources, and
® it is ‘separately identifiable’ (i.e. the Company does not provide a significant service integrating, modifying or
customizing it)

Determining the transaction price

Under Ind AS 115, the Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine
the transaction price. The transaction price means fair value of the consideration received or recetvable, net of returns
and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. GST are not received by the Company on its own account but
collected on behalf of the government and accordingly, are excluded from revenue.

Whete the Company has a tight to consideration from a customer in an amount that corresponds directly with the value to
the customer of the performance completed to date, the Company recognises revenue in the amount to which it has a right
to mvoice.

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

The transaction price 15 allocated to the separately identifiable performance obligations on the basis of their standalone selling
price. For services that are not provided separately, the standalone selling price is estimated using adjusted market assessment
approach.

Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue
can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (ot as) the Company satsfies performance obligations
by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

In the comparauve pertod presented in financial statements, revenue was measured at the fair value of the consideration
receved or receivable. Revenue from the sale of goods was recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership had been transferred to the customer, recovery of the consideration was probable, there was no continuing
management involvement with the goods and the amount of revenue could be measured reliably.

The Company derives revenue from sale of goods at retail stotes. For transfer of goods, the Company recognise revenue
when the customer obtains the coatrol of goods. This usually happens when the customer gains right to direct the use
of and obtained substantially all benefits from goods i.e. on delivery of goods to the customers at retail stores.

Interest income:

[For all debt mstruments measured at amortised cost, interest income 1s recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) as
explained in pomt (v) below.

Dividends:

Dwvidend 15 recognised when the Company's tight to receive the payment 1s established, which is generally when
shareholders approve the dividend.
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Rental income

Rental income including from sub leasing arrangements is recognized on the basis of contractual terms with the parties
except for the cases wherein the rental income is structured to be in line with expected general inflation, then rental
income 1s recognised on straight line basis over the term of contract

Service income

Revenue from service related activities is recognised as and when services are rendered and on the basis of contractual
terms with the parties.

Financial instruments

linancial assets and financial labilities are recognized when Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value using best estimates. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the statement the profit and loss.

Financial assets:

Al recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety ac either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Amortised cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost using effective nterest rates 1f both of the following conditions are
met:

e financial asset 1s held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets 1n order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

® contractual termns of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paviments of principal
and 1nterest on the principal amount outstanding.

The cffective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asser and of allocating 1nterest
mncome over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effectve miterest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition,

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at 'VTPL include financial assets that either do not meet the criteria for amortsed cost classification or
are equity instruments held for trading or that meet certain conditions and are designated at FVIPL upon initial
recognition. Al derivative financial instruments also fall into this category, except for those designated and effective as
hedging instruments, for which the hedge accounting requirements may apply. Assets in this category are measured at
fair value with gains or losses recognized in the statement of profit and loss. The farr values of financial assets in this
category are determined by reference to active market transactions or using a valuation rechnique where no active market
EXISTS.

4 5
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Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

On initial tecognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present
the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments.
This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through
other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss on
disposal of the investments. The Company has irrevocably adopted to value its equity investments through FVTOCI.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the
Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the
amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in the statement of profit and loss are included in
the ‘Other income’ line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortized cost and financial asset designated as at FV'TOCIL

For trade tecetvables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that
are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses using the simplified approach permitted under Ind AS 109.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the
wetghts. Credit loss 1s the difference berween all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company 1n accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.c. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
etfectve interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets).
The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extenston, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

Financial liabilities:

Financial habilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other
payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the
short maturity of these mstruments.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effecuve interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when liabilities are
derecognised. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation 1s included as finance cost in the statement of profit and
loss.
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Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (NCRPS)

At the issue date the fair value of the lability component of NCRPS is estimated using the market interest rate for a
similar non-convertible instrument. This amount is recorded as a liability at amortised cost using the effective interest
method until extinguished upon at the mstrument’s redemption date. The equity component is determined as the
difference of the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the instrument issued to equity shareholders
of the Company.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire
or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a
part of a financial liability) is derecognised from the Company’s balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that
are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value
include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices. All methods of assessing fair value result in general
approximation of value, and such value may vary from actual realisation on future date.

Inventories

Inventories are valued as follows:

Packing and accessories: At lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost represents purchase price and other direct
costs and 15 determined on a “first in, first out” basis.

Traded goods: At lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase price and
other inadental costs incurred 1n bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined
based on first in first out method. Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less esumated costs of completon and to make the sale.

Property, plant and equipment (“PPE”)

PPE and capital work-in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated deprectation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

Cost comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. The cost of an item of PPE
shall be recognised as an assct if, and only if:

it 15 probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of PPE is added to its book value only if it increased the future benefits from
the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing assets, including
day- to- day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacigg parts, are charged to the Statement of Profit and
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Loss for the year during which such expenses are incurred. Expenditure directly relating to construction activity 1s
capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is capitalized as a part of indirect construction cost
to the extent the expenditure is related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect costs incurred during-the
construction pertods which are not related to construction activity nor are incidental thereto are charged to the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation on PPE is provided on the written down value method computed on the basis of useful life prescribed in
Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Schedule I’) on a pro-rata basis from the date the asset is ready to put to use,
Considering the applicability of Schedule [1 as mentioned above, in respect of certain class of assets- the Company has
assessed the useful lives (as mentioned in the table below) lower than as prescribed in Schedule I1, based on the technical
assessment.

Asset Category Useful life estimated by the Useful life as per Schedule
management based on II (years)
technical assessment (years)

Plant and equipment 15 years 15 years

Office equipment 3 years 5 years

Computers 3 years 3-6 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years 10 years

Vehicles 8 years 8 years

Computer software 5 years 3-0 years

The residual values. useful lives and method ol depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year,
Cost of the leaschold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in tespect of capital projects and are carried at cost. Cost
comprises of purchase cost, related acquisition expenses, development costs, pre-operating expenses and other direct
expenditure.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recognised at:
In case the assets are acquired separately then at cost,
In case the assets are acquired 1n a business combination then at fair value.

Following inital recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment loss. Amortisation of Intangible assets is provided on the written down value method computed on the basis
of uscful life as assessed by the management i.e. 5 years based on the technical assessment on a pro-rata basis from the
date the asset is ready to put to use.

Gains/(losses) arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Assets carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount 1s greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.
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Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of cach reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets of a
“Cash Generating Unit” (CGU) to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. Individual assets are grouped for impairment assessment purposes at the lowest level at which there are
identifiable cash flows that are largely independent of the cash flows of other groups of assets. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
When it 1s not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable umount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash- generating unit) 1s reduced to 1ts recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) 1s increased
to the revised estimate of its recovetrable amount. The increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A\ reversal of an impairment loss 1s recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing costs

General and specific bortowing costs directly attributed to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised upto the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Quualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are expensed 1n the period in which they occur or accrue. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

[nvestment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets 1s deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use
of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even 1f that right 1s not explicitly
specified in an arrangement. For arrangements entered into prior to 1 April 2017, the Company has determined whether
the arrangement contain lease on the bass of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition,

Company as a lessee
A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as f|finance lease.
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Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or,
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lability.
Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless they are directly attributable
to qualifying asscts, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing
costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. Flowever, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life
of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over
the lease term unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit or the lease
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected
inflationary cost increases.

Company as a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company 1s a lessor 1s recognized as income on straight line basis over
the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet on their nature.

Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current
mvestments. All other investments are classified as non-current investments. All investments are carried at fair value,

Dividend
Dividend declared s recognized as a liability only after it is approved by the shareholders in the general meeting,

Employee benefits

Contribution to provident and other funds

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund 1s a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognises contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the
scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds
the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent
that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity

Gratuity 1s a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using
the projected unit credit method. The Company recognises termination benefit as a lability and an expense when the
Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it 15 probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the termination benefits fall due more than twelve months after the balance sheet date, they are measured
at present value of future cash flows using the discount rate determined by reference to market yiclds at the balance sheet
date on government bonds.
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Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are
not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Statement of
profit and loss:

Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

Net interest expense or income

Compensated absences

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit which are computed based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the period end.
Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deferred. The Company
presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet to the extent it does not have an unconditional tight to defer
its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual
right to defer the settlement for a period beyond twelve months, the balance is presented as a non-current liability.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay 4s a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

All other employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term
employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, etc. ate recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which the employee renders the related service.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate berween the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetaty items are reported using the closing rate, Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of the Company's monetary items
at rates different from those at which they were mitially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial
statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which they atise.

Income taxes

Tax expense recognised in Statement of Profir and Loss compuses the sum of deferred tax and current tax except the
ones recognised 1 other comprehensive income or directly 1n equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in accordance with
relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Deferred tax is recognised 1n respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets on unrealised tax
loss are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss will be utilised against future taxable
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income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable
income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Untecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the vear when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of Profit and Loss is recognised outside
Statement of Profit or Loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal teporting provided to the chief operating
dectsion maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it 1s probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to
be rexmbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit
and Loss, net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the tme value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a cutrent pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the Liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence ot non—occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that 1s not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be requited to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability bur discloses its existence
m the financial staternents. Contingent assets are only disclosed when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the entity.

Earnings per share

Baste carnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding duting the year. The weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events, other than conversion of potential equity shares, that
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding without a corresponding change in resources.
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For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/ (loss) per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of tevenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates and assumptions
are contnuously evaluated and are based on management’s experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the clrcumstances.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result 1n outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In particular, the Company has identified the following areas where significant judgements, estimates and assumptions
are required. Further information on each of these areas and how they impact the various accounting policies are
described below and also in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Changes in estimates are accounted for
prospectively.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, the management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial staterments:

Contingencies

Conungent habilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including
legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more
uncertain future events oceur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies
inherently involves the exercise of significant judgments and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

Recognition of deferred tax
The extent to which deferred tax asset to be recognized is based on the assessment of the probability of the future taxable
mncome against which the deferred tax asset can be utilized.,

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market change or circumstances artsing beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected
1 the assumptions when they occur.

Useful lives of depreciable assets
The Company reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected
utility of the assets.
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Defined benefit obligation

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future trends salaty increases,
mortality rates and future pension increases, In view of the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

Inventories

The Company estimates the net realisable values of inventories, taking into account the most reliable evidence available
at each reporting date. The future realisation of these inventories may be affected by future technology or other market-
driven changes that may reduce future selling prices. Further, the Company also estimate expected loss due to shrinkage,
pilferage etc. along with NRV impact on old inventory taking into account most reliable information available at the
reporting date.

Impairment of assets
In assessing impairment, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-generating units based on

expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions
about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based
on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this 1s not feasible, a degree of
judgment 15 required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as Liquidity risk, credit
tisk and voladlity. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Measurement of EBIDTA

The Company has elected ro present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate
line 1tem on the face of the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss)
from continuing operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense,
finance costs and tax expense.

Rounding of amounts

All amount disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
requirement of schedule II1, unless otherwise stated.

(This space has been inlentionally left blunk)
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3(a) : Property, plant and equipment

At Cost

As at 1 April 2017
Addiions

Dispasals

As at 31 March 2018

As at 1 April 2018
Addinons
Iispaosals

As at 31 March 2019
Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 April 2017
Charge for the vear
Disposals

As at 31 March 2018

As ac 1 April 2018
Charge for the year
Disposals

As at 31 March 2019

Carrving amount (net)

As at 1 April 2017

As at 31 March 2018

As at 31 March 2019

Leasechold

Plant and

Office

Furniture and

Vehicles : Computers ) Total
Improvements machinery equipment's fixtures

659.64 15.74 180.40 173.74 167.85 455,74 1,653.11

212,63 2010 9.15 0.65 58.93 301.46
(72.32) - - - - (72.32)
799.95 15.74 200.50 182.89 168.50 514.67 1,882.25

799.95 15.74 200.50 182.89 168.50 514.67 1,882.25

101.16 2071 50.02 1.96 46.71 220.56
(16.59) (15.74) - - (32.33)
884.52 - 221.21 23291 170.46 561.38 2,070.48

361.71 11.01 76.27 151.62 142.13 242.66 985.40

169.88 1.49 20.83 11.85 8.50 60.89 27344
(72.32) - - - (72.32)
459.27 12.50 97.10 163.47 150.63 303.55 1,186.52

459.27 12.50 97.10 163.47 150.63 303.55 1,186.52

7215 .36 22.59 26.70 505 61.04 287.89

(12.77) (12.86) ’ . : (25.63)
618.65 - 119.69 190.17 155.68 364.59 1,448.78

297.93 4.73 104.13 22.12 25,72 213.08 667.71

340.68 3.24 103.40 19.42 17.87 211.12 695.73

265.87 - 101.52 42.74 14.78 196.79 621.70
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3(b) : Capital work-in-progress

At Cost

As at 1 April 2017 35.64
Additions 3
Capitalised (35.064)
As at 31 March 2018 -

As at 1 April 2018 -

Addinons 7.12
Capitahsed
As at 31 March 2019 7.12

3(c) : Other intangible assets

Computer Software

At Cost

As at 1 April 2017 99.38
Additions

Disposal &
As at 31 March 2018 99.38
As at 1 April 2018 99.38
wdditions

Lispexsal ¢
As at 31 March 2019 99.38

Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 April 2017 77.29
Charge tor the year 6.74
Phsposals, adjustments

As at 31 March 2018 84.07

ﬂ

As at 1 April 2018 84.07

Charge for the year

Disposals/ adjustments

3.67

|

As at 31 March 2019 87.74
Carrying amount (net)

As at 1 April 2017 22.09
As at 31 March 2018 15.31
As at 31 March 2019 11,64

(Thas space Las beew intentiomadly left blank)
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LN X B As at
. Non-current investments 31 March 2019

Investment in equity instrument - Subsidiaries (Unquoted)
(Measured at amortised cost)

TNSI Retail Private Limited”

189400000 (31 March 2018: 18,940,000, 1 r\pnl 20017 18,940,000)
equaty shares of T 10 cach fully pard up 27000
Welcome Retail Private Limited”

25,300 (31 March 2018: 25,500, 1 Apnil 2017: 23,500) equiry shares
b 210 each fully pard up

(]
I
o

Total 272.55

* Tomeludes shares held by nommee sharcholders on behalt of the Company

5 ; SuLTe! As at
5(a). Loans - non-current 31 March 2019
(Measured at amortised cost)

Securty deposits 1,314.91
1,314.91
3(b). Other financial assets - Non-current baap

31 March 2019
(Measured at amorused cost)

Margin money deposns’ 269.25
Lterest ascrued but ot duc ononargn mones deposies 31.24
300.49

Maegan money depostts warh bank sigamst bank guarantecs.

As at
6. Deferred tax assets (ner) 31 M;ni;: 2019

Tax effece of items constituting deferred tax assets

Fanployee benetits 38.51
Imparrement for doubttul debis 237
Ditference benween accounting base and ax base of property, plant and equipment 222,41
imancal assets and habihoes atamortised cost 9.57
Unused tax deprecanon 206.61

479.47

Unusad tax credis

479.47

As at
7. Non- current tax assets (net)

31 March 2019

Advance meome ux (aet ot provisions) 23017
230.17
As at
8. Other non-current assets

31 March 2019

Prepand lease rent 185.72
Prepad expense 11.36
Capital advances, considered goud 14.29

Capnal advances, credit smpared

Less: Loss allowanee

411.37

As at
31 March 2018

270.00

(8]
u
O

272.55

Asat
31 March 2018

1,027.37

1,027.37

As at
31 March 2018

15192
1509

165.61

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 Murch 2018

119.62

119.62

As ut
31 March 2018

429 40
210
34726
15.94
(15.94;

778.82

As at
1 April 2017

270.00

™~
wr
v}

272.55

As at
1 April 2017

768,90

768.90

As at
1 April 2017

198.03
w106

207.21

Asat
1 April 2017

As at
1 Apnl 2017

23.70

23.70

As at
1 April 2017

470.73
13.20
333.83

837.82
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9. Inventories As at As at As at
' 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
(valued at lower of cost or net realizable value)
Packing and accessories 0.94 340 870
Traded goods [inchihing stock-m-teansit : Nil (31 March 2018 T 1.180.13 A
22096, 1 Apel 2017 230999 L2 i bk L
1,273.20 1,185.55 1,312.28
As at As at As at
10. Tr; ceivables
tlEER bl 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
(Lnsecured, consdered good unless otherwise stated)
Onstanchng for a perod exceedmg six months from the date they are due for parment
i nsecured, consudered good 53.58 69.60) 4063.95
Unsecured, credic smparred 456 BA7 +
Less Toss alloavance {4.56) (8.37) 4
35.58 6Y.60 463.93
Oither recenvables
Lnsecured, considered wood 900,94 261.37 156.83
Unsecured, eredi mpasred 4.57
Less @ Loss allowance (4.57) - -
956.52 330.97 620,78
. . As at As at As at
& ash and cash ¢ ale
11 Cash and cash equivalents 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Cash and cash equivalents
Bakances with banks
Clurrent accounts 162.64 3082 328.80
washom hand 70.88 45.25 4844
233.52 96.07 377.30
As ut As ut As at
. Other bs alance 3
L Criieebaitl baluies 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Maggan money depuosis’ 272,70 15536 331.84
Less Amount disclosed under non current assets (refer note 3(b)) (269.25) (151.92) (198.03)
3.45 344 133.79
" Margin money deposits tor openimg of stores and government authoritics
As at As at As at
13(a); Loans = eureen 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
(Measured at amortised cost)
Secunty deposits 57.83 #3.22
57.83 83.22 -
As ut As at As at
. Other financial assets - ¢
13- Ot Aol Fp ety = eugrin 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
(Measured at amortised cost)
Credit card recevables 26.30 16.97 16.13
Cabilled revenue 829
Interest acerued but not due on margn money deposits .22 0.33 26.74
34.87 17.52 42.87
4
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14. Other current assets e fAval Azl
: h 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)
Prepaid expenses 38.75 2295 B
Prepaid lease rent 122.93 12512 96.99
Advance 1o employees 238 4.33 7.44
Advance to suppliers 148.70 90.39 114.82
Balance with government authonties 173.43 69.79 1.07
(Unsecured and considered doubtful)
Advance to suppliers - 39.87
Less: Loss allowances s (39.87) .
Advance to employees 284
Less: Loss allowance (2.84) %
486.19 312.58 22032
15. Equity
(i) Equity share capital AgL Azt Azt
Sl 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Authorised
10,000,000 (31 March 2018: 10,000,000: 1 April 2017 10,000,000} equity shares of 210 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
each
1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
4,144,211 (31 March 2018: 4,144,211, 1 Apnl 2017: 4,144,211) equity shares of 414.42 414.42 414.42
210 each
414.42 414.42 414.42
a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 As at 1 April 2017
Nos. Amount Nos. Amount Nos. Amount
At the beginning, of the year 4,144.211 41442 4,144,211 41442 4.144.211 414.42
Shares issued dunng the year - = = - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 4,144,211 414.42 4,144,211 414.42 4,144,211 414.42

b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 210 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays
dividend in Indian Rupees. The dwidend proposed by the Board of Directors 1s subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

In the event of iqudation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The

distnbution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c) Shares held by the holding company

Name of the sharcholder As at 31 March 2019 As a1 31 March 2018 As a1 1 April 2017
Nos. Amount Nos. Amount Nos. Amount

ADD Adwisors Povate Limited (tall 10 May 2018) - 4,094,211 409 42 4,094,211 409.42
Future Retail Limited (w.e.f 11 May 2018) 4,144,211 414.42 v - -
d) Details of equity sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 As at 1 April 2017
Name of the Sharcholders Nos. % holding Nos. % holding Nos. % holding
ADD Advisors Prvate Limited (ull 10 May 2018) 4,094,211 98.79% 4,094,211 98.79%
Future Retail Limited (we.f 11 May 2018) 4,144,211 100% - -

* It includes 6 shares held by nominee sharcholders on behalf of Future Retail Limmited

During the year, 100% shareholding of the Company s being acquired by Future Retail Limited from ADD advisors Pavate Limited and other shareholders.

As per records of the Company, including, regjster of shareholder/members regarding, beneficial mterest, the above sharcholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of

shares.
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As at Asat
i) Pref h ital
0 Patrsrnve: shuse:copd 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
uthorised
3,500,000 (31 March 2018: Nil; 1 Apnl 2017: Nil) 7% Cumulative non-convertible —
redeemable preference share capital (NCRPS) of 2100 each 4 B
3,500.00 -
Issued, subscribed and paid up
5 . 3,400.00 :
3,400,000 (31 March 2018: Nil; 1 April 2017: Nil) Cumulative NCRPS of 100 each
400.00 &

# Refer note 17(c) for further details

(a) Movement in preference shares Number of shares
As at 01 Apnl 2017

Issued during the year

As at 31 March 2018 =
Issued dunng the year* 3,400,000
As a1 31 March 2019

As at
1 April 2017

Amount

3,400.00
3,400.00

*During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has issued 3,400,000 7% Cumulative NCRPS to Future Retail Limited (the holding company) at 2 100/~ per share on 29 March

2019

(b) Terms and rights attached to the Cumulative NCRPS

The Company has only one class of preference shares having a par value of 3 100 per preference share. These shares shall carry cumulative 7% dividend and are redeemable by the Company at the

end of 15 years or at any time at the option of the Company not later than 18 months from the date of allotment of such shares.

. As at Asat
i Oic ednify 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Security premium'”’ 246539 2,465.39
Retained camings (3,139.03) (3,202.94)
Deemed equity™ 2,168.20 =
1,494.56 (737.55)
Description of nature and purpose of reserve
(i) Securities premium
As at
31 March 2019
Opening Balance 2,465.39
Additions duning the year i
Utilisations during the year 5
Closing balance 2,465.39

vature a sei

As at
1 April 2017

2,465.39
(2,530.62)

65.23

As at
31 March 2018
2,465.39

2,465.39

Secunty premium is created when the Company issue shares at the premium. The aggzegate amount of premium received on the shares is transferred to a separate account called
"security premium reserve”. The same wall be utihised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and related provisions. This reserve is carried forward from earlier

years

(ii) Retained earnings

Asat
31 March 2019
Opening Balance (3,212.34)
Profit/(loss) for the year 59.53
Transacuons of other comprehensive income directly recognized in reserves
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax impacts) (4.38)

Closing balance — 157.19)

vature and purpose:

Retamned eamungs are created from the profit,/(loss) of the Company, as adjusted for distnbuunons 10 owners, transfers 10 other reserves, etc

As at
31 March 2018
2,53062)
(677.02)

(4.70)
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(iii) Deemed equity

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Opening balance 5 =
Additions duning the year 2,168.20
Utilisations during the year 5 y
Closing balance* 2,168.20 -

* Refer note 17 for further details related to 7% cumulative NCRPS

Natwre and purpose:

Company has 1ssued Cumulative NCRPS during the year to Future Retail Limited (the holding company) carrying interest rate of 7%, The excess of transaction value over the fair value
at the 1ssue date 1s recognised as equity component of Cumulative NCRPS.

Total other equity [(i) +(ii)+(ii)] 1,476.40 (746.95)

(Thus space bas been mtentionally left blant.)
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17. Non- current borrowings

(Measured at amortised cost)

Term loan

Term loan from banks (secured) [refer note 17 (a) and (b)]

Financial Lability part of fully non-convertible redeernable
preference shares (NCRPS) (unsecured) [refer note 17 (cj]

Amount disclosed under the head "other financial liabilites" (refer
note 18)

Loans guaranteed by others:-
Rupee loan from bank

Notes:

Non-current portion

Current maturities

Asat Asat As at Asat As at As atl

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

5 2,124.63 2,231.27 100.00 28.37
1,232.67

1,232.67 2,124.63 2,231.27 - 100.00 28.37
- - - (100.00) (28.37)
= 5 . - (100.00) (28.37)

1,232.67 2,124.63 2,231.27 - = -
2,124.63 2,231.27 100.00 2837

a} The term loan facility of ¥ Nil (31 March 2018: 2 2,500, 1 Apxil 2017: % 2,500) from Yes Bank carries an interest at rate of fleating 1.40% over and above the Bank's yearly MCLR i.c.
having effective rate of 10.20% per annwm as on 31 March 2018 {1 Apnl 2017 10.20% per annum) and is repayable in 40 quarterly instalments starting from March 2018 and last
instalments will be paid in December 2026. The Company has made repayment in the month of December 2019. The outstanding book balance as on 31 March 201915 of  Nil (31

March 2018 2 2,224.63, 1 April 2017: 2 2,254.14)

The above facility was secured against the following updated securities (post acquisition of holding company by Future Retail Limited):-
1) Exclusive charge on entre fixed assets, movable fixed assets and current assets of the Company (both present and future):
2) Exclusive charge over all secunty deposits of the Company including deposits to all space owner/developers such as Delhi International Airport Limited ete.;

3) PDCs for principal repayments; and

4) Unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee of Future Retail Limited (the holding company) to remain valid during the entire tenor of Yes Bank Limited facilities.

b) Vehicle loan of ¥ Nil (31 March 2018: 14.9, 1 April 2017: ¥ 14.9) from HDFC Bank Limited carries an interest rate of 10.02% per annum. These are repayable in 60 monthly
instalments cornmencing 20 November 2013 and ending on 10 October 2018. This loan is secured against hypothecation of vehicles. The Company has made repayment in the month
of June 2017. The outstanding book balance as on 31 March 2019 1s of 3 Nil (31 March 2018: I Nil, 1 Apnl 2017: 2 5.49).

¢} Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable 7% Preference Shares ('NCRPS')
The NCRPS carry cunulative dividend dght @ 7.00% per annum. The Board reserves the dght to pay the dividend subject to the availability of profit. In case of loss or inadequacy of
profit, dividend will get accumulated and will be paid cumulatively in the year of profit.
NCRPS have been initially recorded at fair value by discounting the cash flow at maturity of instruments with discount rate of 13% p.a. {interest rate applicable to similar other

borrowings of the Company)

The difference between the transaction price and fair value of the instruments 1ssued to Future Retail Limited (the holding company) are treated as “deemed equity™.

Balance as at 1 April 2017
NCRPS issued dunng the year
Interest expense

Balance as at 31 March 2018
NCRPS issued during the year
Interest c_\'pfnscml

Balance as at 31 March 2019

#Interest costis presented under "finance costs”

Financial
liability carried
at amortised cost

1,231.80

0.87
1,232.67

The date of allotment and number of shares for the series of preference shares are given below:

Series

1

18. Other financial liabilities - Non-eurrent

Secunty deposits

Other payables

Date of allotment

29-Mar-19
Total

Asat
31 March 2019

254.05

254.05

Deemed equity

Number of Shares

3,400,000
3,400,000

Asat
31 March 2018

171.20
6142

232.62

Total

3,400.00

0.87
3,400.87

Face value

(INR 100/- each)
3,400.00
3,400.00

As at
1 April 2017

]
o
-1
1

124.48



Travel News Services (India) Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(ATl amounts n 2 lacs, unless stated otherwase)

i As at As at As at
19. Oth - liabilit

ERen e e e 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Advance lease rent 38.25 4391 3292
Other payables 12,17 19.18

4591 52
W As at As at As at
20. P - Non-

HERE = Nenreuene 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Peovision for gratuits oblgaton (refer note 39) 3393 28.43 27.89
Provision for compensated absences (refer note 39) 29.66 17.51 16.4)

63.59 46.34 44.29
2L Current borrowings Apat Ay A it
o = 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

(Measured at amortised cost)

Cash credits from banks (secured)

11991
£ 119.91

Loans guaranteed by others:-
Rupee loan from banks 119.91

Details of repayment, rate of interest and security for loans from bank:-
4t Ihe secored overdratt facility of  Nil (31 March 2018:3 500, 1 Apal 2017 - 2 300) from Yes Bank carnes an mterest at rate of floanng L80% over and above the Bank's yearly

MCLR 1. having effectve rate of 10.20%% as on 31 March 2018 and s cepavable on demand The overdraft facility has been closed durmg the yves
31 March 2019 15 of 2 Nal (31 Maech 2018: T Nil, 1 Apri! 2017: T 119.91)

. The outstanding book balanee as on

The above facility was secured aganst the followmg updated secunties (post acquisstion of holdmg company by Future Retaul Linuted):
1) Lixclusive charge on enure fixed assets, movable hxed as
e lusive charge over all secunty deposits of the Company i
3) PDCs tor prmeipal repayments; and

and current assees of the Compar

(both present and future);
cluding deposits 1o all space owner/developers such as Delly International Airport Limited ete;

4) Uncondsonal and irrevacable corporate guarantee of Future Retal Linired (the holding company) to remam valid durng the entire tenor of Yes Bank Limited facilines

As at As at As at
22, Trade payables ;
Trade payables 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
(Measured at amortised cost)

Lrade pavables

“lotal owstanding duc of mecro and small enterprises’ 2902 36.89 492
Total outstanding due of creditors other than macro and small enterprises = 240048 250249 2,280.93
2,489.50 2,629.38 2,285.85

*Reter note 46 tor deenls of dues to micro and small enterprases

“Reter note 36(c) for payables w related pares.

(Vhis spuave Das been ententionmally felt bleenk f
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Travel News Services (India) Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other cxplanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amounts 2 lacs, unless stated otherwise)

o g As at As at As at
23. Other financial liabilities - current 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
(Measured at amortised cost)
Creditors for fixed assets 1L 21.70 39.28
Curtrent matunhes of non-current bortowmgs {refer note 17) - 100.00 28.37
Interest and other charges acerued and due on borrowmgs* - 12.47
Interest acerued and not due on borrowings 2202 10.48
Share applicaton money payable # - - 255
LEoployee related payables 108.04 7825 3142
Retention mongy +.32 248 335
Security deposits 32.00 18.00
Book overdrat 363.86

521.93 225.85 156.42

# Pursuant o subscoption by the Company through Memorandum of Assoeaton dared 29 August 2016 of Weleome Retul Penvate Limited {a subsidiary), the Company has agreed o
wvest m the form ot equity share caprtal Le. 23,500 equity shares of 2 10 cach fully pand up. Subsequent to 31 Mareh 2017, the Company has invested such amount in the Welcome
Retad Private Lumuted

*Detuls of penod and amount of contimung default as on Balance Sheet date are as tollows

Particulars Period of default g Period of Ag at Period of As at
31 March 2019 default 31 March 2018 default 1 April 2017

Interest on term loans from financial institution:
Tdmabulls Tlousing Finance Company - - - - 164 1297

24. Other current liabilities s As Asut
o Miercurre 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Statory abihoes 107.83 93406 101.25
Advance from customers 8.58 6.81 12.07
Cither labihines 3.51 3.51 67.84
\dvance lease ent 30,13 18.51 895
Deterred revenue 2.65

152.70 121.8Y 190.11
25, Provisions - Current sl Aot Azt
= R =M 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Provision tor gratuey, (reter now 39) (.30 (45 (.48
Provision fur compensated absences (refer note 39) L6G 042 (.37

116 0.87 0.85

(Fhes spatie haas been sntenteonally left blank)
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Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Alhamounts n 2 laes, unless stated otherwse)

L T For the yeur ended For the year ended
. 3 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Operating revenues:

Sale of waded goods 14468.31 11471.99
Total (A) 14,468.31 1147199
Other operating revenue:

Service imcome 332,88 5534.58
Rental mcome L1444 452.57
Tortal (B) 1,367.32 1,007.15
Revenue from operations (A+B) 15,835.63 12,479.14

Note:

New stundards adopted - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Indan Accounumg Standard 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“Ind AS 1157, estblishes a framework for deternunng whether, how much and when revenue 1s
recogmsed and reguires disclosures about the nature, amount, tnung and uncertamnty ot revenues and cash flows ansmny, trom customer contracts. Under Ind AS 113, revenue s
recogmsed through a 3-step approach:

() Idenuty the contract(s) wath customer;

() tdenufy separate performance obligations w the contract;

(m) Deteenmne the ransaction price:

(1v) Allocate the ransacton price to the performance oblgatons, and

(41 Recognise revenue when a pecformance obligation i satstied.

The Company has adopred the standaed on 1 Apel 2018, As a result, the Company has changed ats accounting policy for revenue recogmtion as defined i Note 2(b)v) The
Company has apphed md AS 115 wsing the "Cumulaove et Method”. Under this method, the Company shall recognise the cumulative véfect of mumlly applying this Standard as
an adpustment w the openimg balance of retaned carmings (or other component of cquity, as appropriate) of the accounting period that meludes the date of imal appheation.
Revased reporhng standard. Tad AS 115, requices no adjustments o be made to the retuned carnmgs as ac 1 April 2018 Consequently, there are a0 impacts of the standard on

ar ended 31 March 20019

lialanee Sheetas w31 Maech 2009 and profit and loss for the \

Sigmificant changes in contract assets and liabilities:

There has been oo simficant changes i contact assers ‘contract labilies durmg the vear

Disaggregation of revenue:
Revenue anses mamidy from the sale of raded goods, service meome and rental meome.

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Nale of raded goods 14 46851 1147199
Service meome 332.88 334.58
ental mcome 10144+ 432.57
15,835.63 12,479.14

Revenue secognised in relution to contract liabilities:
Ld AN TS alsa vequares dhsclosure of major changes on account of revenue recogised i the repartng period from the contract halnhoe balanee at the begnmng of the pernod and
other changes

Receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities related to contracts with customers in relation to service and rental income:

As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Recervables
Lrade recevables Y5632 33097 62078
Contract assets
Linbidled revenue 8.29 - -
Contract liabiliues (Advance from customer and deferred revenue)
Opening balance 081
Revenue recopmized that was meluded m the contract labihny balance ar the beginning of the vear {0.51:
Closing balance 11.23 12.07
V&
/. \
/
{




Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Al amounts i 2 lacs, unless stated otherwase)
27. Other income

Interest meome on
Bank deposns
Orthers
loreim exchange gum (vet)
Profir on sale of fised assets

Miscellaneous meome

28. Purchase of stock in trade

Purchase of rraded goods

2Y9. Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Inventories at the end of the year
Traded goods (meliding stock in transty
Packmg matersal and ac

ISSOTICS

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Iraded goods (ncludg stock in transit)

Packmg materal and accessones

30, Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contetbution o provident and other funds

Seaff welface

31 Other expenses

Rent
Property, plant and equipment written off

Feanclusee fees

Addvertsement and sales promouon
Llectrenty and water

Foreygn exchange loss (net)
(:liﬂlﬂ]lllll(’dlllﬂll

Iravellng and convevance

Bank charges

Rates and taxes

Markenny tee

1egal and professional {refer note below)
Pontmg and satoneny

Insurance

Imparemnent tor loss allowance - debrs
Bad debis

Imparrement for loss allowance - advances
Repases and mamtenance - others

Fresght expenses

Recrutment chy

Miscellancous expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2019

19.76
116.59
3447
138
75.806

248.06

For the yeur ended
31 March 2019

8,101.82

8,101.82

For the year ended
31 March 2019

1,272.26
0.94
1,273.20

1,180,135
3.4
1,185.55

(87.65)

For the yeur ended
31 March 2019

1,1any7
§4.28

2.11

1,207.36

For the year ended
31 March 2019

472839
382
819.25
37.19
1374y

Y184
38.50
100060
36.19
94.35
11541
582
10.67
9.13

422

7252
3T I8
1327

21435

6,580.31

For the year ended
31 March 2018

1356
88.97

49.77

152.30

For the year ended
31 March 2018

6,2061.98

6,261.98

For the year ended
31 March 2018

1,180.15
5.40
1,185.55

130332
876
1,312.28

126.73

For the year ended
31 March 2018

839.70
70.10
28.94

938.80

For the year ended
31 March 2018

3A4T7.86
22.80
790.61
7.83
137.33
4.35
72.63
+1.30
9110
11.57
76.65
16L.18
5.7
738
8.36

38.64
93.59
12.04
1.24
230.41

5,566.84



Travel News Services (India) Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

fAILamounts n 2 lacs, unless stated otherwise)
Note:
Legal and professional includes payment to auditors (excluding taxes):
- as auditor
for mxaton matter
for other services

tor reimbursement of expenses

32. Finance costs

Literest eapens

33. Depreciation and amortisation expense

Deprecation of property, plint and cquipment (refer now 3(a))

Amortsaton of mtangble assets {refer note 3(c))

34 Tax expense

Current tax
Current tas on profus for the year
Total current tax expense (u)

Deferred tax

Increase mdeterred s assets

Towal deferred (tax expense)/benefic (b)
Total income tux expense (a+b)*
Comprises of

lomal tax eredit as per SOPL

Lax e xpense on Olther Comprehensive Income

35. Earnings/ (loss) per share

Profit/ (loss) after tax
Nommal value per share (3)

W erghted average number ot equury shares tor basic and diluted carnmgs per share

Addd werghted average number of potenval equiy shares

W erghted average number of equaty shares tor dduted carmngs per share

Earnings/ (loss) per share (in ) (Basic and diluted)

{(Fhes spuce s liovn iitentivnelly ft bleeeik)

1100
11.96

(.88

For the year ended
31 March 2019

41177

41177

For the yeuar ended
31 March 2019

287.8Y

3.07

291.56

For the year ended
31 March 2019

47947
479.47

479.47

43101
(134

For the year ended
31 March 2019

59.53
10.00
41.44

4144

L0
+.70

092

For the year ended
31 March 2018

333.89

333,89

For the year ended
31 March 2018

2734
6.78

280.22

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2018

(677.02)
10.00
41.44

4144

(16.34



Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts in 2 lacs, unless stated otherwise)
36. Related party disclosures under Ind AS-24

(a) List of Related Parties and nature of relationship where control exists

Name of Related Party Nature of Relationship
IDFS Tradings Prvate Limited Ulumate holding company (ull 10 May 2018)
ADD Advisors Private Limited Holding company (till 10 May 2018)

Future Retail Limited Holding company (w.e.f 11 May 2018)

TNSI Retail Pavate Limited
Welcome Retail Povate Linted

Directors

Mr. Suml Mantni

Mr. Rajan Malhotra Sushil

Mr. Virendra Mansukhlal Samam
Mr., Arun Rajasekaran Barathi

Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Director (w.e.f 11 May 2018)
Director (w.e.f 28 August 2018)
Director (w.e.f 11 May 2018)
Director (ull 31 August 2018)

Mr. Sanjeev Bhata Director (ull 11 May 2018)

Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Sunil Mantn

Mr. Ajit Singh Chhiller Company Secretary (w.e.f 29 March 2019}
Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel

Mrs. Ritu Mantn Wife of Mr. Sunil Mantri

Entity able o exercise significant influence
Future Corporate Resources Prvate Lirmited (Formedy known as Suhani Trading and Investment Consultants Private Linited)

a) The following transactions were carried out with KMP and relative of KMP in the ordinary course of business:-

Dissanati Key managerial personnel and Relatives of key managerial
escription

personnel
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Post employment benefits - granuty
Mr. Arun Rajasekaran Barathi - 0.21
Mr. Sunil Mantn 0.49 .
Salanes, wages and bonus
Mr. Arun Rajasekaran Barathi 34.36 34.36
Mr. Sunil Mantn 42,40
Otherlong term benefits - Leave encashment
Mr. Amun Rajasekaran Barathi 0.34 0.27
Mr. Sunil Mantn 558
Director sitting fees
Mr Virendra Mansukhlal Samani 0.20 -
Mr Rajan Malhotra Sushil 0.20
Purchase of services
Mrs. Ritu Mantn 1.26

(Thes space bas beon mzenvonally left blank)



Travel News Services (India) Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts in X lacs, unless stated otherwise)

b) The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business:-

Particulars

i) Purchase of traded goods’
Future Retail Limited
TNSI Retail Pnvate Limited

ii) Sale of goods‘
TNSI Retail Private Limited

iii) Service and rental income”
Future Retail Linuted
TNSI Retail Private Liruted

iv) Interest expense on 7% Cumulative NCRPS

Future Retail Limuted

.
v) Rent expense
Future Retail Lunited

Welcome Retail Povate Limited

vi) Reimbursement of expense received
TNSI Retail Prvate Limited
Welcome Retail Pnvate Limited

vii) Business advances received

Future Retail Lirnited

viii) Business advances repaid
Future Retail Lunited

ix) Lease expense
TNSI Retail Private Limited”

x) 7% Cumulative NCRPS
Future Retail Limited

xi) Security deposit paid
Welcome Retail Private Limited

xii) Security deposit received
Future Retarl Linuted

xiii) Corporate guarantee issued

Welcome Retail Povate Limited

Year ended
31 March 2019

44.28
3,190.79

110.16

138.00
315.00

0.87

25.29
1,437.03

96.22
230.04

3,926.01

3,926.01

3,400.00

592.72

Year ended
31 March 2018

2,426.67

182.84

300.00

741.59

63.70

# Warchouse has been taken on lease by TNSI Retail Private Limited (Subsidiary). Such warehouse has been shared by the Company with TNSI Retail Private Limited for storing

and mamntaining the trading goods, without any consideration.

Transactions as disclosed above 1s excluding GST.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)



Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts i  lacs, unless stated otherunse)

<) Balances at the end of year:-

Particulars As at As al As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

‘TNSI Retail Private Limited
Trade recervables 62876 36.53 558.86
Investnant m equity shares 270.00 270.00 270.00
Welcome Retail Private Limited
Investment i equity shares 255 255 255
Share application money payable - - 255
Secunty depost pad 360,56 8217 282.17
Advance to supplier 78.05 025 -
Trade payables 6.51 4 3991
Corperate guarantees provided 120267 609.95 @09.95
IDFS Tradings Private limited .

084 028

Tradz payables -

Future Retail Limited

Tiade payables zo2 N
Trade

Secunty depost receved 3

wwatles

KMP

Post emplovment benefits - pratnty

Me. Arun Rajasekaran Baraths :
Mr. Surul Mantri 0.49
Other long term benefits

Mr. Arun Rajasekaran Barathn - 027 -
Mr. Sund Mantn 558 = -

=3
X

“ Corporate guarantees has been provided by the Company on behalf of Welcome Retail Povate Lumuted to Airports of Authonty of India (AAI). The outsanding book balance as on 31
March 2019 2 1.202,67 {31 March 2018: 3 609.95, 1 Apnl 2017: 2 609.95)

(Thes space bas been attentinadly left blank,
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Travel News Scrvices (India) Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Allamounts in 2 laes, unless stated otherwase)

37. Fair value measurements

‘The followmg table shows the careymg amounts of finanenl assets and fnancial habihtes

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
FVPL FVOCI Amortised FVPL EVOC] Amortised FVPL FVOCI Amortised
cost cost cost

Financial assets

v esuments 27255 273,55 - 27233
Toans s 137274 1,110.59 T6H8.90
tashand cash equi alents - - 253.52 96.07 - - 37730
Lrade recenvables - - 956.52 33097 - 620.78
Margm money deposaits - - 27270 13530 - 33184
Other recenvable - - 00.11 31.21 - - 3203
Total financial assets - - 3,174.14 - - 1,996.75 - - 2,423.40
Financial liabilities

Borrowmgs 1,232.67 222463 - 2379.55
Secunty deposits 286.05 171.20 96.75
I'rade pavables 2.489.50 - 2,629.38 - 228385
lmployee related pavables 108.04 78.25 4142
Captal credators - - 1111 - - 2170 - 30.28
Other payables - - 37018 - = 87.32 - - 75. 10
Total financial liabilities - - 4,498.15 - - 5,212,48 - - 4,917.93

Note:
Lhe munagement assessed that carrymg value of faancal assets and twancal habilites, carred at amornsed cust, are approximately equal o then far values ar respecnve balinee sheet
dures and do non syguficantly vary from the respeetive amounts m the balance sheet

(i) Fair value hicrarchy

lach ¢l

s at assets and habibues measured a

farr value 1o the balinee sheet are grouped mio theee levels of a far value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based i the
observabilty of symubicant mputs to the measurement, as follows,

fevel 1 lweracehy meludes benenl mstruments measured wsmy quoted prices This mehades Dsted traded mutual funds that have quoted puce the munml funds are reporied using the closing
N

1o T The e vadve of hnanesd mstruments that aze not teaded moan acnve magket s determmied usy valuation techmgques which maxmuses the ase of observable market data and rely as hittle
A5 pussible o enfin spectlic estmates. 1 all sysuficant mputs requared 1o tar value an mstrument are observable, the mstrument s mcluded m Tevel 2

Laevel 3T one or more ot the sgmficant mputs 1< not based on observable market data, the mstrument s meluded m level 3 This 15 the case for unbsted cquity seeursties, contingent consideration
wid mdemabicaoon asser weluded i level 3.

Hhere has brew o trnsters between Level 1, Level Zand Level 3 for the vears ended 31 March 2019, 31 March 2018 and 1 Apnl 2017

Frnancial assets and liubilities measured at fair value- recurring fair value measurements
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 31 March 2019

vinaneal assets

Pl habilities

As at 31 March 201
Funanenl assers
Fuanenal habilites

As at 1 April 2017
Fmancal assets

Fiancul habihties

(Thas speacs baas been wtesitumally Joft bank)



Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Al amounts n 2 lacs, unl

stated otherwse)

38, Financial risk management

A. Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard continuity as a going concern, provide appropriate return to sharcholders and maintain a cost efficient capiral
structure. The Company determines the amount of capital cequired on the basts of an annual budget and a five year plan, including, for working capital, capital investment in

stores and technology. The Company’s funding requirements are met through nternal acenuals and a combinauon of both long-term and short-term borrowings

The Company monstors capatal un the basis of taral debt 1o total equity on a peoodic basis The following table summarizes the capral of the Company:

Capital As at As at As. at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

Long term bortowmgs (ncluding current matunities) 1.232.67 2,224.63 2,2539.64
Short term borrowings " . 11%.91
Less: Cash and eash cquivalents (233.52) (96.07) 377.31)
Total debt 999.15 2,128.56 2,002.25
Fquty share capstal 41442 41442 41442
Other equity 149436 (737.33) (65.23)
Total equity 1,908.98 (323.13) 349.19
Gearing ratio 0.52 (6.59) 5.73

In order w achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst uther things, ams to eosure that it meets financial covenants attached to the mterest-
bearnng loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements
Nu changes were made n the objectives, pohieies or processes for managgnyg capital durmy the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

B. Financial risk management

A wide ranpe of nsks may affect the Company’s business and operatonal / financial performance. The asks thar could have sigmificant mfluence on the Company are market

sk and bquidity nisk. The Company’s Board of Directors reviews and sets out pohews for managng these osks and momitors sutable

ctiwms taken by management o

munumse potental adverse effecis of such asks on the Company’s operinonal and fimancal performance

B.1 Marker risk :

Aarket Rash s the nsk that changes i market plice could affect the tuture cash Qows w the Company. The marker sk tor the Company aoses pamanly from mtetest ate nsk,
currency nish and product poce ash.

i) Interest risk: T'he Company 15 exposed o mresest aue sk pomanly due 1o boscowings having floanng mterest rates. The Company uses available worcking capatal hmats for
avihing short erm cash eredits.

e Company mitygates the same through efficient use of working capital limits and regular monstormg of Inerest Coverage ratio.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company’s mrerest rate risk o 1o cash flow mterest rate sk, The

rises majorly from borrowings carrying floatng rate of mter

e

exposes the Compay

expasure of the Company’s borrowng to mterest rate changes as reported to the management at the end of the reportmg penod are as follow

Variable rate instruments S A5 o

i 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Lerm loan from bar 222465 2537405
Total - 2,224.63 2,374.05

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible change of (.30 %4 i anterest rates at the reportng dare would have affected the profit or loss by the amounts shown below.

Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars Increase by Decrease by
0.50'% 0.50%

Increase/ (decrease) in interest on borrowings
For the year ended 31 March 2019 -
ot the year ended 31 March 2018 1112 (11.12)

The analysis s prepared assuming the amount of the borrowings oustanding at the end of the year was outstanding for the whole year.

ii) Product price risk: In a pownually mflanonary economy, the Company expects penodical poice increases across its cetul product ines. Product price mncreases which are
es volumes. [n such a seenano, the sk s managed by offering judicious product
n volumes. The Company negonates with sts vendors for purchase price rebates such that the rebates substanually absorb the product
discounts oftered 1o the retarl customers. This helps the Company protect sself from sigmificant product macgan los

notin hne with the levels of customers” discretonary spends, may affeet the busmess/retail s;

discounts to retul customers o sus

I'his mechanism also works i case of a downturn i the

ail seeror, although ovenall volumes would get affected




Travel News Services (India) Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Allamounts i 2 lacs, unless stated otherwise)

ii1) Foreign currency risk

Forewn currency nsk 15 the nsk thae the fur value or future cash Bows of an exposure will fluctuate beeause of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure 1o
the osk of changes i foceign exchange ates relutes pamanly to the fanchise fees pavable by the Company as on year end.

Unhedged foreign currency nsk exposure in GBP:

Imancl habihises  1'rade payables

Foreign currency sensitivity

31 March 2019

31 March 2019

31 March 2018
GBP INR in lacs GBP

31 March 2018

INR in lacs

1 April 2017
GBP

1 April 2017
INR in lacs

T04,646.19 036.15

TRULALO0

70019

393,084.00

31793

Ihe followang tables demonstrate the sensivity o 4 reasonably pussible change m GBP exchange eaw, wath all uther varables held constant. The impact on the Company’s
profit before tax 1s due to changes i the far value of monetary assets and habilities.

Particulars

Statement of Profit and Loss

basis points

Inerease by 500 Decrease by 500

basis points

Increase/ (decrease)
I*or the year ended 31 March 2019
tror the vear ended 31 March 2018

B.2 Liquidity risk :

(35.23)
(39.50)

Laguadsty risk 1s a sk that the Company may not be able to meet nts financial obhganons on a umely basis through ss cash and cash equivalents, and funds available by way of
committed credit facilmes from banks. Management manages the hquidiey nsk by montonng colling cash flow focecasts and matunty profiles of financul assers and habiites.
s montoring includes fimancal ranos and tkes mto account the accessibabity of cash and cash equivalents and addmwional undrawn fnancing facdites

e mble below summarnses the matunty profile (remummg perod of contractual matunty at the balwee sheet date) of the Company’s fnaneal habibties based on contractual

undiscounted cash fows

As at 1 April 2017

Borrowmgs (non current and current)
Interest payable

I'eade pavables

tumplovee related payables

secuaty deposits

Capaal creditors

Other payables

As at 31 March 2018

Borrowmgs (non current and current)
Iuerest payable

Lrade payables

Lamployee related payables

Seeurtty deposits

Capial creditors

Orther pavables

As at 31 March 2019

Borowmzs (non carrent and current)
| eade pavables

tmployee related payables

Seeunty depusits

Caprtal creduors

Other payables

Less than 1 year

Berween
1 and 5 yeurs

More than 3
years

Carrying amounts

148.28 GO0 1,631.27
2345 -
492
4142
18.00 32.80 25.87
39.28 39.28
31.63 3165
327.00 652.86 1,657.14 2,637.00
10000 SO0 1,534.51
Z302
30.849
78.25
148.13 23.07 171.20
2170 2170
63.30 65.30)
324.16 948.13 1,557.58 2,619.99
1.252.67 1,232.67
2902 290z
T08.64 LSO
3200 244,03 942 250.05
IL11 1111
370,18 370.18
550.95 244.63 1,242.09 2,037.67

(Fhis spatce s bevn intentivicilly feft blavk )
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B.3 Credit risk

1) Credit nisk anses from the possthiliy that counter party may not be

sk imues age also ser accordinglhy

The Company considers the probability of defaul: upon il cecogmuon of asser and whether there has been

throughout cach weportng peaocd. To

s whethee there s a sipmificant merease n credit sk, the Company compares the

a sigmificant ncrease n ¢

able to settle thew oblyganons as agreed. To manage thas, the Company penodically ass
rehability of customers, taking mto account the financul condition, current cconumie trends, and analysis of histoncal bad debts and

reportng date with the nsk of defaalt as at the date of il recogmion. The Company considers reasonable and supportive forward-lookmg mformation

As at 31 March 2019
Particulars

Investments
Loans
Cash and cash cquialents
Irade recesvables
Nor due
Overdue {0-12 months)
Overdue ( more than 12 maonths)
Margan money deposes
Other recevable

Total financial assets

As ut 31 March 2018
Particulars

Investments
| vans
Cashoand cash cqunvalents
frade tecenvabies
Now duc
Overdue (0-12 months)
Uverdue (more than 12 months)
Margn money deposity
Uther recenvable
Total finuncial asscts

As ut 1 April 2017
Particulars

Investments
Luoans
Cash and cash ¢

I'rade recewvables
Not due
Overdue (9-12 months)
Owerdue ¢ more than 12 months)

Magnn money deposits
Other reeenable

Total financial assets

Estimated gross

Expected credit

:sses the financial

agewny of account cecevables. Individual

t nisk on an ongoing basis
sk of default occurnng on the asset as ar the

Carrying amount

carrying amount loss net of impairment
provisions
27285 27
137274
233.52
402 4002
921.4] 913 91228
422 422
27230 27270
G011 O6G.11
3,183.27 9.13 3,174.14

Estimated gross

Expected credat

Carrying amount

carrying amount loss net of impairment
provisions

27L55 27255
L1y L1039
JO.H7 0.07
9245 V243
237.80 237.80
PAYY] 437 Uiz
15330

31.21

3.37 1,996.75

Estimated gross

Expected credit

Carrying amount

carrying amount loss net of impairment
provisions
27255 27255
76890 768.90
377 50 377.30
+480 486
00482 0482
3442 43.32 L1
33184 33184
32,03 32003
2,466.72 43.32 2,423.40
FFis spone heas been cmeutionally bt bk )
-
2 |
| [ en)
//' Y i
rd ~
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39. Employee benefits
Employee benefit obligations

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
Cratusty 030 3393 3443 045 28.83 29.28 048 27.89 2857
Compensated absences .60 29.66 30.32 042 17.51 17.93 .37 16.40 16.77
Total )l benefit
N S MEeRendl L16 0359 64.75 0.7 4634 a7.21 0.85 44.29 45.14
obligations

1. Defined benefits plans - Gratuity

“Ihe gratury liability anses on retwement, withdeawal, resgmation and death of an employec he aforesard kabiliy 15 caleulated on the bass of filteen days salary (Le. last deawn
basic salary) for each completed vear of service subject to complenon of five vears service

Policy for recognizing actuarial gains and losses:

Actuaral guns and Josses of defind benetit plan ansmg from experience adjustnents and cftects of changes m actuanal assumptions are immeduately recognized m other
comprehensive meome. Risks assoemted with the pln provisions ase actuaced risks. These risks are mterest rate sk, moctality nisk and salary nsk

(a) Bulance sheet umounts- Gratuity

The amount recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

Present
Particulars value of

Balance us at 1 April 2017 28.37
Current service cust 10.79
expense/ (wcome) 223
Total amount recognised n profit or loss 13,02

Beameaisutesrenis

(Gam), loss trom change m demograplic assumpuons

{Crany/loss from change i financial assumptions 2.02)

Laffecr of Eaperwnce Adjustments (2.08)

baperence {(guns)/losses
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 4.70
Beneht payiments (2.49)
Acquisttion adjustinent (+.94)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 29.26
Balance as at 1 April 2018 29.26
Current service cost 12.61
expense/ (income) 2,30
Total amount recoguised in profit or loss 14.91

Reaecisurvinenty
(Gawy/loss from change m demographic assumpuions -
(Gam)/loss from change m financnl assumptions 0406
[iffect of Experience Adjustments (3.98)
Faperience {gams)/losses

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 5.92

Boneht payiments

Aequisinon adjustment
Balance as at 31 March 2019

e net labihity diselosed above relates o unfunded plans are as tollows

Particulurs As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Present value ol tunded 3442 2426 2437
obhnons
Unfunded Provision 34.42 29.26 28.37
\ “\‘
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(b) Assumptions:

l. Economic assumptions

Particulars As at As at As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Discount rate 7.86% T.87% 751
Salary growth rate 0.30, 6.30%, 6,300

e discount rate ss based on the prevadug macket vields of Indian government secunies as at the balanee sheet date for the estunated term of the obligations.

Ihe salary esealation rate s based on estmates of saliry mereases, which takes into aceount mflanon, promotion and other relevant factors

2. Demographic assumptions:

Parnculars Ay i Ayt
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Revrement age 38 38 38
Withdeawal rare, based
Rl ape
18 10 30 Years i 2 e
Ao 43 Years 2 2 2
Above 43 years { 1 1
Mortahty Table [TALM (2006-2008) TALM (2000-2008) TALM (2006-2008)
(c) Sensitivity anaiysis
Reasonably possible changes at the repornng dare 1 one of the relevant actuanal assumptions, holdmg other assumpnions constant, wonld have aftected the defined benefit
ablgition by the amounts shown below
Impuct on defined benefit obligation
Particulars ANge 10 Assumption A4S i mption Decrease in assumption
e - o 31‘12:::11 s HA!;::ch
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 2018 31 March 2019 ° 2018
Ihscount rate + /100 basis w100 basis pomits (3.32) 4.81) H93 6.00
Salary growth rate + /=100 basw = /=100 basis pomis 6.98 604 3.63) 1)
Althongh the analysis does net take account ot the tull dstabuton ol cash flows expeeted under the plan, st does provade an approsmation of the sensmvi of the assumptions
(d) Weighted average duration
Particulars 1year 2-5 years More than 5 years Total
31 March 2019
Detined benefit (.30 10.34 2358 3442
ubliganon
Total
31 March 2018
Defined henetit L43 454 2449 29.28
ablgaton
Total

detuled miormanon o the extent provided by the acnury n the acteaoal cernticate has been ncluded m the disclosuee abiove.

(e) Risk exposure
Phrcngh s defined benetie plans, the Company s exposed toa number alsks, the most sganbicant of which are detaled below:

Interest rate risk: The present value ot the defined benefic habahey s caleulated wang o dscount vate determmed by referenee o market viclds o igh quabey corporate bonds. The
exstmated wem ol the bonds s consstent wath the estmated teem of the defmed benefit obhganon and s denommated m INRC A deervase o narket yield on igh quabin
corporate bonds wall merease the Company s defined beoefin habiby

Mortality risk: The prosent vaiue of the detmed benefu plan habiluy s caleulated by reterence to the best estimate of the mortahity of plan paracpants. A change m ortahity rte
will Bav e bearmg on the plan's habibity

Salary escalation risk: "The present value ot the detined benetit plan babiliey 1s caleulated with the assumpuon ot salary mevease rate ot plan parnapants wm intuee. Devyunon m the
uite ot merease ot saliry m tuture tor plan pacocpants from the rate ot werease mosalan used 1o detenmme the present value ot blygion wall hase o bearmg on the phn's labdin
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2. Leave encashment

Amount recognized m the statement of profitand loss 1 as under

ror e year
For the year y

ended Jrll‘::laerih
31 March 2019 o
Current service cost 1743 8.un
Interest cost 1.41 1.32
Actiarial loss/(gam) recogmsed durmg the year (.11) (1.97)
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss 18.75 8.25

2. Defined contribution plans

1ie Company has also ceram defned contmbution plans. Contebunions ace made o provident fund w Indm tor employees at the sate of 12% of the basie salary as pee regulanons. The
contrbutons are made 1o regestered provident fund adosmstered by government of Indu. The oblyatons of the Company 1 limited to the amount contabured and 1t has 1o turther
contractual not any constructive obbgations. The expense recognized during the vear towards defined contrbution plan s 2 53.69 ( 31 March 2018 - 2 1849]

{(Fhis spuice hais boen sotentronnlly deft blanky
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40. Contingent liabilities, not acknowledged as debt, include:

Wikl As at Asat As ut
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Bank guarantee given 1o Awrport Authonty of India on behalf of Welcome Rerail Penate 120267 00993 609,95

Dimsred (4 subsidiary company)
41. Lease commitments

A. Non-cancellable operating leases

the prenuses are taken on lease for a lease wrm rangmg from hve to nne years icludmg the lock-m perod ranging from one to three yeaes. These lea
the expary of wnal lease term subject 0 mutal consent of both the partes. There are no restrctions imposed on the Company under the |

s are further renewable on

acgangement

The mimmuam lease payments over the lease teem are as under:

(A) Total future minimum sublease payments expected to be received under non-cancellable subleases:-

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Nat later than 1 vea 1,274 7% 0Y2.55 10943
Later than 1 vear but not later than 3 years 3.577.27 208549 5311.91
Farer than 3 years (.32 271.73 273.29
4,858.37 3,049.77 894.63
Sublease meome for the year recognized 1 the Starement of Profit and loss 101444 432,57
(B) Operating lease commitments - As a lessee
Particulars e As AL Ab o
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Not Later than 1 Y ear 421213 305044 205194
fates than 1 Year but not later than 5 years 14,384.27 1272773 10,237.95
ater than 3 Y cars 11169 £,354.34 3,962.07
19,698.09 17,112,51 16,351.96
Comungent Tease expense for the vear recogmzed i the statement of profcand loss © 521 020.66 112441
Munnem lease g ments recogmuzed mostarement of Profin and Loss 3970.39 2851.20 1,.439.19
Lease expense for the year recognized in the statement of Profit and loss 4,728.39 3,477.86 2,563.00

i !f(:nl:ugﬂil went computed as frxed percentage of rent

(Fhas yputie et beew sntentounadly feft blank)
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42 Deferred ax

(i) Effective tax reconciliation (ETR)

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Accounting loss (421.48) (677.02)
Applicable tax rate 20% 20%
Expected tax expense (109.58) (176.03)
Adjustments:
Dererred tanes now recopmzed on unused tax deprecaton and temporary ditfferences feefer note () below; B77.01 -
Dieterred tases not recognwed on unused tax Tosses and wmporary difference feefer note ') below: (135-4H)
Deterred tax not created oo unused @x losses, pursuant to provisions of Tncome Tax Aet 1961 irefer note ini below, ;30340
Impact on account of change of meome @ax rates 40.59)
Other permanent differences {4.33)
Actual tax cxpcnse,ﬂ’(credil] (479.47) -

Note I As per Finance Act, 2019, the ncome tax gates for domestic compames whose turnover has not exceeded INR 230 crores m vear ended 31 Macch 2017, the appheable rate of

meome tax shall be 23% plus applicable cesses

(1) Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) (net)

As at As at As al
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

Tax effect of iems constning deferred 1ax assets

tumplovee benefis 2754 2093
Iuparment or doubtful debts and advances 1742 13.39
Lstterence between accountmg base and tax base of property, plant and equapment 0163 19213
cusincil assets and labiines atamortsed cost
Limsed tax deprecation 176.01 135.5¢
L nused rax losses 30340 135.53
479.47 926.59 817.57
Fax cffect of items constituting deferred tax liabilites
Eancial assets and labilioes ac amortsed cost - 148,99, 754U
(48.99) (75.40)
Less: Deferred tax assets restricted up to deferred tax liability - 877.61 742.17
Delerred tax assets (net) 479.47 -
Unused s credits - - 11.31
Total deferred 1ax assets 479.47 - 11,51
Note 2: Movement in abovementioned deferred tax assets and liabilines
Recognised in [ Recognised As on Recognised in o i
3 As on 4 ceog ed Recognised in As on
Paruculars £ statement of in other 31 March statement of
1 April 2017 other reserves | 31 March 2019
profit and loss reserves 2018 profit and loss
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Fmplovee benelits 20403 339 1.22 273 7 L34 3831
Imparment tor doubtiul debs and advances 1339 113 1742 % 1 b5
Intterence between accountmg base and tax base of
property, plant and equpment 19213 i) 20063 2220 2224
Financual assets and labidies at amortised cost = 057 9.37
Unused s deprecinon: 13359 2102 176.01 20001 200.61
Lnsed tax losses 43553 67 87 2340
Tax cffect of tlems consututing deferred tax liabiliues
Fumaneal assers and habilines at amortsed cost 175.40) 2041 R AS
Deferved tax assets (net) 742.17 134.22 1.22 §77.61 477.93 1.54 47947
Less: Deferred tax assets restricted up w deferred tax
liability 21T 134.22) 11.22) (7701
Total - = S - 477.93 1.54 479.47

standavd 12 "Ineame Taxes". spectbied under Section 133 of the Act. Durmg the year ended 31 March 2009, the Company has recogmsad the
amalys of axable weome and tuture business projeenons and vperanons made In

Ihe € ompany Tollinws Tndian \ecounting
deterred tas assets an all deductble wnporan differences and unused tax deprecation - ba
the amnagement. to the vstent 1tas probable tat future @sable peofit wall be avadable

sed on the
it which such deductble temporary differences and anused s depreaanon can be utlsed.

However, such probabiiy regarding tuture avadable rxable profes dos nor existas ar 31 March 2018 and 1 Aprl 2007,
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Note 3: The unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets are recogmsed representing business losses are as follows:

As at 31 March 2018

Year of loss (Assessment year) 2;::;2:3:3031'] Amount
2015-2010 2024 233.21
2016-2017 2025 149.26
ANT-2008 2026 00305
2018-2019 2027 520.07
1,936.16
As at 1 April 2017
Year of loss (Assessment year) :.:;:eii;)c;::}g;cnr} Amount
2015-2010 2024 25521
20106-217 2025 149.20
2017 2N 2026 LO05.03
1,409.49

(Ulus spene has been mtentronally left blank)
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43. Operating Segments
Tu the opion of the management, there is only one ceportng segment "Retail Sales” as em waged by Tad AS 108 "Operating Segments”. The Company 1s operating only w Tadia and
there s no other sigmficant geographical segment,

44 The Hon'ble Supreme Court (SC) I
lowance et pad mdoomly and wmve

i reeent decision (SC decision’), euled that vanous allowanees ke com e ance allowanee, special allowance, education allowance,

s would form pact of basic wages for computing the provident fund (P or ‘the fund’)

Iy by an emplover 10 11s employe

medhe
comtnbution and thereby, has lind down pring ples to exclude (or melude) a parteular allowance or payments from “basic wage’ fur the putpose of compunng ' comtnbuton The
wee allowance and others allowances to s emplovees as a pact of us thew compensabon structure, which aze not mcluded w the basic

Company pavs special allowance, conve
1es for the purpose of computng the PE

As the above smd subng has not prescribed any chinificanon wrt 1o 1t appheason, the Company s m the process of evaluatmg the inpact on the provident fund contributions
recognised mthe financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019.

Peadmg cardicanon and evaluation of mopact of above sad, 1o provasion for contrbutiun has be

45. The Company carnies out physical venficanon to cover all 1ts retul stores and storage umts dunng the vear. Shocefall Wentfied duriny such physical veaficanon 1 adyusted for

vach store/wmt at the relevant tne during the year after conclusion of such exerese, Such write-oth pertaimns 10 damage goeds, short/ excess wventory, misappropriation of myventory

cte Durmg the year, the Company has created provision for inventory write off amountng 2 6558 (31 March 2018 2 135.94).

46. Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {("MSMED Act")

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 L April 2017

1 i he pemcipal ameunt and the interest due thereon remaming unpad o any supplier as at the end of cach
.ll'l'[)uli{lnlL{ yoar
-Primcipal Amount 27.04 36.8Y 492

Interest thereon, weluded m fnance cost 1.98

W) The amount of wierest pad by the buver i terms ol seenon 16 of the Micro, Small and Medum Faterprise
Development Act, 2006, along with the amounts of the pavment made o the suppher beyond the appomited day

during cach accountng vear

W Ehe o of mgerest due and payable for the perd of deliny i makimg paviment fwhiech have been pand b

bevond the appomied day durng the vear) but without adding the micrest spearfied under Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprise Den clapment Act, 2006

W) Phe amount of mterest acerued and remanmng uapad at the end of cach aceounting yo el L

v e amoant of tuether nnerest resmaning due and payable even m the succeedmyg years, unul such date -
when the mterest dues as above are actually pasd 10 the small enterprase for the purpose of disallowanee as o

3 and Medam Fiterprise ey elopmeny Aet, 2006

3 ot the Micro, Smal

teducuble expenditure under seetion 2

Hhe abiove mtormanon regarding Nicro, small and Medm Lterprises has been determmed 1 the eatent such parties have been entibied on the Basis of mtosmaton avs

sth the Company

CFhes spatve das beens sntenteonsally feft Wand )
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47 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities pursuant to Ind AS 7 - Cash flows

"The changes in the Company’s hiabilities acising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

Non-current Current ]
. ; Deemed equity Total
borrowings borrowings

As at 01 April 2017 2.259.64 11991 - 2,379.55
Cash adjustments
Cash mflows - . - -
Cash outtlows (70.99) (119.91) - (190.90)
Interest pad (261.08) (15.85) - (274.93)
Non-cash adjustments
Interest aceruals/expense 261.08 13.85 - 274.93
Vffeenve mterest rare adjustments 33.98 - - 35.98
As ut 31 March 2018 2,224.63 - - 2,224.63
Cash adjustments
Cash intlows 1,231.80 - 2.168.20 3 400.00
Lash outllows (2,434.63) (2,434.03)
Interest paod {199.94) (199.94
Non-cash adjustments
Interest accruals/expense 199.94 - 199.94
laffectve iterest rate adjustments - = %

on NCRPS .87 0.87

o term loans 210,00 210,00
As at 31 March 2019 1,232.67 o 2,168.20 3,400.87

{thes space hay been mtennonally fefl blank)
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4. First ime adoption of Ind AS
Explanations of transition to Ind AS

s stated i Note 2. these ace the Company's first financial statements prepared m accordance with Ind A8, Lot the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company had prepared ws
Accounung Standards) Rules. 2006, notsficd under Section 133 of the Act and wther relevant provisions of the Aet (Previous

tmancaal statements m accordance with Compam
GAAT)

e accounung pohaies set out m Note 2 have been apphied m preparing these financnl stements for the year ended 31 March 2019, mcludmg for the comparam ¢ mformation
s for the year ended 31 March 2018 and the openng Ind AS balance sheer as on the date of transimon, e, 1 Apnl 2017

presented m these fmancnl stateme

adjusted amounts reported
statements prepared in accordance with the previous GAAP. This not explams the principal adjustments made by the Company i restating its financial
evious GAVP, and how the transiion from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s financial position. financial

T preparig s nd AS balanee sheet as at 1 Apnal 2007 and presenting the comparative mformation for the vear ended 31 March 2018, the Company b

previousl m finane

satements prepared in accordance with

perturmance and cash fows.

A. Ind AS Optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions

In prepanng these financial statements, the Company has applicd the below mentioned opuonal exemptions and mandatory exeepuons -
a) Uptional exemptions availed

L Fair valuation of property plant and equipment, and intangible assets

et bnd AN 101 an entity may elect

1 measure an tem of propern, plant and equipment ar the dace of mnsiton at its fair value and use that farr value as s deemed costar that date

st previous GANP revahation of an item of property. plant and equipment at or before the date of transiion as deemed cost at e date of the recaluavon, provided the

revahution wis. at the date of the revaluaton, broadly comparable to:

tair value,
oreostos deprecated cost under Tnd AS adjusted to reflect. for cxample, changes in a general or speatic price mdex.

he dlecnons under () and (1 above are also avaable for mtangible assers that meets the recogmuon cntera m lnd A3 38, Intangible Assets ‘meludmg relable measarement of

ool costand cotem m ind AS 38 tor revaluation ancluding the existence of an acty e market

red inaccordance wath

e cary e s of property. plant and equpment, intangible assoes and mvestment propertes s on the date of transiton o I AS iwhich are e

prestoes U rhers Bas been no change mos functonal curreney on the date of trnsiton

s pereatted by fnd A 101, the Company has elected 10 contmue with the carrying value of all of as property, plant and equipment and mtangihle assets recognised as at | April

2007 mcasune Las per previous G A AP

suss whether a contract or arrangement contams a lease. In accordance with Ind AS 17, assessment should be carned out ar the

Appendix C o Ind AS 17 requires anentity to ¢
meepton of the contract or arrangement. Ind AS 101 provides an option to make this assessment on the basis of facts and circumstances exssting at the date of tansiton to Ind AS.
except where the effeet s eapected to be not materal. \ccordmgy. the Company has elected to assess all the contracts exasting at the date of ransition o Ind \S

b) Mandatory exceptions

I Estimates

M entin's esumates maccordance with Ind ASs at the date of ransinon 1o Ind AS shall be consistent with estmmaues made for the same e m accordance wath previous GAAP
at those estmates were merror.

after adpustinents to retlect amy ditterence m accounting pohaes), unless there 1s obectnve evidence t

nd s esomates as At 1 Apnal 2007 are consistent wath the estmates as at the same date made m contormity wath previous G AP The Company made estimates for impawment of

el assets based on expected eredit loss model m accordance with Ind VS atthe date of wansiuon as these were not required under previous GA VP

2. Classification and measurement of financial assets

I AS 101 requices an ennty o assess cassification of fivancial assets on the basss of facts and crcumstances esistme as on the Jate of trausinon. Further, the standard peomns

measurement of fmancil assets aceounted at amortised cost based on facts and circumstances exsstng at the date of tansition f retrospeci e appheanon 1s impractcable

Aeeordmgly. the Company has determmed the classitication of finaneial assers based on faers and renmstanecs that enasted an the date OF transition.

3. De-recognition of financial assets und liabilities

I AS J01 requires a first e adupter o apply the de-recogmuion provisions of lad AS 109 prospecnvely for tamsacton occurnng on or after the date of mnsimon to Ind AS
However, Ind AS 101 allows a first ame adopeer o apply the de-recogmition requurements mInd AS 109 terrospecuvely from a date of the entity's chousug, provided that the
mtoemation needed o apphe Ind AL 109 or fmancial assers and fuancul labhoes desecognssed as a result of Past trans
thase tansactons

1ons was obtamed ar the tme of minally accountng tor

Phe company has clected to apply the de-recogmuon provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively Frum the date of transinon 1o 1ind AS.

B. The following reconciliations provides the effeet of transition 1o IND AS from IGAAP in accorduance with Ind A% 101
1 Reconvtbnom o1 equn as at 1 Apal 2007 and 3 March 2018

2Nt profit for the vear ended 31 March 2018 s — \
; / \

3 Keconclmonn of toral equity as at 1 Apod 2017 and 31 March 2018 {4

4 Reconvaliaton o total comprelensive meome fur 31 Mareh 2018 - iICe, [/ \




Travel News Services (India) Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Al asnounes w2 lacs unless stated otherwise)

C. Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS

1. Reconciliations of equity

As at 31 March 2018

As at 1 April 2017

Adjustment on

Adjustment on

Particulars Notes  Previous GAAP*  transition to Ind Ind AS Previous GAAP* transition to Ind Ind AS
AS AS
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equpment 695.73 695.73 66771 667.71
Capital work o progress S 35.04 35.64
Intangble asscts 15.31 13.31 22,09 22.09
Imancial assets
Tnvestments 27255 27235 27255
Loans § 1.606.24 57887) 102737 1569.88) 768.90
(rther fmancral assets 163.61 165.61 207.21
Deterred tax assets fnet, 11.51
NON-CUCTENt fas assets (e 119.62 119.62 - 23.70
Cther non current assets 2and 3 AT 364,35 778.82 40643 $37.82
Total non-current assets 3,289.53 (214.52) 3,075.01 2,950.56 (103.43) 2,847.13
Current assets
inventories 1.185.53 1,185.35 1312.28 - 1,312.2¢8
Fmancil assers
Feade reeenvables 33087 3097 02178 - 620,78
Cashvand cash equivalents 2607 G607 377 3 . 370
Other bank halances 344 344 15579 133,79
Loans §3.22 8322
Other fmancil issers 17.52 1752 4287 4287
L Mlher current asset 2 187 46 125.12 31258 12334 Y6.98 221132
Fotal current assets 1,904.23 125.12 2,029.35 2,610.36 96.98 2,707.34
Fotal Assets 5,193.76 (89.40) 5,104.36 5,560.92 (6.45) 5,554.47
Equity and liabilitics
Equuny
gty share capual Aleh2 4142 142 1442
Other ety 1.734.06; 10051 737 35 83339 16 65.23)
Tortal equity (1,324.64) 1,001.51 (323.13) (440.97) 790.16 349.19
Laabilites
Non-current liabilities
Fuanenl abihes
Borrowing- I 23351 20984 2024063 2475.1% 245.80, 223197
Cither fimancial labihnes 2 299.94 67.32; 252.02 166,67 “21y 124.48
Orher nou-current habihnes 2and 3 878.12 832.21) 4391 20901 51751 5210
Provisions 1634 40.34 4429 44.29
Total non-current liabilities 3,358.91 (1,109.41) 2,449.50 3,257.70 (805.56) 2,452.14
Current liabilities
Fuancial lmbiliues
Burrowags 11991 i1y91
[rade payables 2.02938 202938 2.285.85 2.283.85
Other toancial lalnhues 22585 22385 150,42 15642
Ovther cursent habihoes 2 103,39 18.50 121.89 18136 895 19011
Frovisions .87 0.87 n.85 . 08>
Total current liabilities 2,959.49 18.50 2,977.99 2,744.19 8.95 2,753.14
Lotal linbilities 6,518.40 (1,090.91) 5,427.49 6,00L.89 1796.61) 5,205.28
Lowal equity and liabilities 5,193.76 (89.40) 3,104.36 5,560.92 (6.45) 3,554.47

* The previous GAAP figures have becn reclassified o conforms to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.

FVhi sputee Iy beess antentiomilly Jft blond



Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019

(AN smounts 2 hacs. unless stated otherwise)

2. Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2018

Adjustment on

Particulars Notes Previous GAAP* transition to Ind Ind AS

AS
Income
Kevenae from opetanons Zand 3 12,323.88 H6T74, 1247914
Other meome 2 63.33 88.97 15230
Total revenue 12,589.21 42.23 12,631.44
Expenses
Purchase of stuck-m-trade 6,.201.98 0,261.98
Changes m myventones ot stockan-rade 12673 120.73
Fmplover benehit, expense ] 93409 471 938.80
Other eapenses Zamd 3 558338 1210.34) 5.300.84
Total expenses 12,906.18 (211.83) 12,694.35
Loss before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (LBITDA) (316.97) 254.00 (62.91)
Fmance costs Zand 4 286447 4742 333.89
Deprecanon and amorusation expense 211.22 280.22
Loss before tax (883.66) 206.64 (677.02)

Income tax expense
Eurrent tay

Deferred s

Laoss for the year (883.60) 2006.64 (677.02)
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasuement gun on post employment benefic oblygsations i 170 ]

Income tax effect un above

Other comprehensive income for the year = 4.70 4.70
Fotal comprehensive loss for the year (883.66) 21134 (672.32)

* The previous GAAP ligures have been reclassified to conforms to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.

3. Reconciliation of total equity as at 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2017

; As at Asal
Particulars Notes 5
31 March 2018 1 April 2017
'otal equity as per previous GAAP (1,324.64) (440.97)
Adjustments
Measurement of tmancul lubiity secunn deposits recewed; at amortised cost et 2 2o 033
Measurement ol financial assets secunty deposits paxdy atamortised cost (ot Z 2430, (2.13)
Vicasuremient o finaacal lubihity (borrowngs receved) at amortised cost (net) + 20488 24586
Rent meome adustment veversal ot esealaton mpact (vet; 3 0243 .20
Rent expense adwstment - reversal of escalation wnpact (net) 3 878,12 35042
Lotal adjusuments 1,001.49 790.17
Lotal equity as per Ind AS (323.15
4. Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for 31 March 2018
Year ended
Particulars Notes
31 March 2018
Net loss as per previous GAAP (883,60
Adjustments
Veasurenent of Imancial labdiy ssecunn deposies recen ed; anamorosed cost et 2
Measurement of fnanciad assers secuney deposits pad) atamortised cost net 2 2
Measurement of fuanerd habihty (borrowmgs recewved; at amorused cost et + A
Rent meote adjustment  reversal ol escalation umpact (net) 3 ‘ol 76,
Rene expense adjusunent - reversal of escalauon impact {net) 8

Total adjustments

Total comprehensive loss tor the year ended 31 March 2018

The transition ta Tnd VS as above did not have any materal wnpact oo the cash flow actanes of the Company as reported ander Provies G AP




Travel News Services (India) Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2019
)

(Al amounts m # lacs, unless stated otherwi
D. Notes to firsti-time adoption

1. Remessurements of post-employment benefit obligations

Under the previous GANP. actuarial gains and losses on cmployee defined benefit obligations were recognised m profic or loss. Under Ind AS, the actuarial gams and losses
on remeasurement of net defmed benefit obligations are recogmsed m other comprehensive mcome. This has resulted in 2 rechssificanion between profit or loss and other

l‘E)lllprL‘hL‘ll.‘l\'(‘ meomde.

2. Security deposits
\s per Ind AS 109 - “Fmancal Tnstruments”, securiy deposits are financial wstruments which have to be measured acits faur value on mital recogninon. Under previous

GAAP, mterest free secunty depostts were recorded at their ransaction value. Accordingly. the Company has done fair valuation of these deposits and the differcnce between

the transaction salue and For value 15 teated as advance renals which s amortised on strught hine basis over the related perod of seeurity deposit. Further, interest income/

wnterest espense s recogmised on the present value wath reterence to the disconnting rate.

3. Lease equalization reserve

led on a straght-hne basis over the lease eem. However, Ind-
ses. Accordingly, the Company

Unoer the previous GAAP, rerteapenses/ rent meome meluding rent vscalatons and rent tree period were reco
auon reflects expected inflavonary cost me

1 permats the Company o gnore strught-hnng of rent expense/ rent meome 1 cse ¢

has reversed the lease equabisanon reserve 1o he eXIent pertuns o rent escalations smce it considers inereases in rent largdly 1o be consistent wath the mnflation rate

4, I'erm loan from bank

The Company had tken o wem loan of T 2500 tom 3 es Bank himited m March 2017, The Company had pad upfront processmg charges on that loan which has been
s been recognized n the carrying amount of the loan am considered m the

expensed ot dunng that year Under Ind A8, loan processing tee on all fimancal labidiies
effecove mrerest rate on the borrowmgs

49, Assets pledged as security:

‘I he carnymg amoaunts of assets pledged as seeunry for current and non-current borrowmgs are
As at As at As at
31March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 69573 4
Capatal work e prog ress 33.04
hitangable asser 13.31 2209
el assets
Loans 1.027.37 T68.90
- 1,738.41 1,494.34
Current assets
Inventones - 118355 1312.28
Fmancial asscts
L rade recenvables 33097 62078
Cash and cash equivalents 96.07 371.30
Uther bank balances 344 133.79
Loans 4522 ,
¢ither financral assets 17.52 1287
Olicr cureent assets 312.58 220,32

2 2,029.35 2,707.34

- 3,767.76 4,20L.68

Toul ussets pledged as secu

50, Changes in accounting policies:
E

presented m these tinancnal statements

copt for the changes m accountng policy as referred m Note 26 (Revenue from opeeanons). the Company has consistently apphed the accountung pubeies w all penods

51 1 he hanenl staements were approved lor exteral ssue by the board of dicectors on 23 May 2019

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

even date

Thas 15 the sumemary of sigmficant acconntng pohcies and other explanatory wlonmaton reterred tom our report ¢
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